BY-LAWS

, 0**7**

THE OVERLOOK CONDOMINIUM UNIT OWNER'S ASSOCIATION

ARTICLE 1

Offics

Office.

The office of the Association and of the Board of Directors shall be located at the Condominium or at euch other place as may be designated from time to time by the Board of Directore.

ARTICLE II

Definitions

Section 1.

"Association" shall mean and refer to the Overlook Condominium Unit Owner's Association, its successors and assigns.

Section 2.

"Froperties" shall mean and refer to that certain real property described in the Declaration of Condominium of Overlook (Overlook), and such expansions thereto as may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction of the Association.

Section 3.

"Common" Elements shall mean all real property controlled and managed by the Association for the common use and enjoyment of the members of the Association as described in the Declaration of Condominium of Overlook Condominium.

Section 4.

"Unit" shall mean and refer to a portion of Overlook designed and intended for individual ownership and use. "Residential Unit" shall refer to one of the Units designed for residential occupancy and use. Section 5. "Member" shall mean and refer to every person or entity who holds membership in the Association.
 Section 6. "Owner" or "Unit Owner" shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one or more persons or entities, of a fee simple title to any Unit which is part of the Properties, including contract sellers, but excluding those holding title merely as security for the performance of an obligation.
 Section 7. "Declarant" shall mean and refer to Melba Investors

Section 8.

Southeast, Inc., T/A Wintergreen, its successors and assigns as developer of the "Properties". "Declaration" shall mean and refer to the Declaration of Condominium applicable to all Properties recorded in the Office of the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Nelson County, Virginia.

ARTICLE III

Membership

Section 1.

Every person or entity who is a record owner of a whole or partial interest in any Unit which is gubject by the Declaration to assossment by the Association, including contract sellers, shall be a member of the Association. When a Unit is owned of record in the name of two or more individuals, each co-owner shall be a member provided, however, that the vote appertgining to such Unit shall be cast in accordance with Section 55-79.77(c) of the Code of Virginia as asended. The foregoing is not intended to include persons or entities who hold an interest worely as security for the performance of an obligation. Heabership shall be appurtement to and may not be separated from ownership of any Unit which is subject to assessment by the Association. Ownership of such Unit shall be the sole qualification for membership,

...2

Section 2.

Suppension of Membership Rights, During any period in which a member shall be delinquent in excess of 30 days in the payments of any annual or special assessment levied by the Association, the right to the use of the Common Area and the recreation facilities, if any, of such member may be suspended by the Board of Directors until such esseement has been paid, provided, however, that access by the delinquent Unit Owners shall not be denied. Such rights of a member may also be auspended, after two weeks prior written notice and e hearing before the Board of Directors, for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days, for violetion of any rules and regulations established by the Association governing the use of the Common Elements and facilities.

ARTICLE IV

Obligations of the Owners

. . . .

Saction 1.

Every Owner shall Expenses, Assessments. contribute toward the expense of the maintenance of Common Elements and payment of other Common Expanses, as provided by the effrancesioned Decleration. The Association shall fix a querterly assessment for each Unit in an amount sufficient to provide for its share of the maintenance of the Common Elements and other Common Expenses, subject to adjustment from time to time as the Association may deem necessary. Each reaidential Unit shall pay a portion of the total assessment equal to the reciprocal of the total number of residential units. Such quarterly charge shall be due and payable , in advance on the first day of every calender quarter, shall at the option of the Board of Directors when established at a duly called meeting

of said Board, bear interest at the tate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum from due date until paid, and with such interest shall be a lien on the Unit, assaused prior in right to all other charges whatsoever except assessments, liens and charges in favor of the State of Virginia or the County of Nelson for taxes past due and unpaid on such Unit and amounts and lisbilities secured by first mortgage instruments or deads of trust duly racorded prior to the perfection of the lien and securing institutional lenders. In the event any Owner is delinquent in the payment of any quarterly assessment for a period in excess of thirty (30) days, the Association is suthorized to discontinue all services that the Association is furnishing to his Unit and residence thersof and/or to suspend the essenant to the Coumon Elements, (except for access) to the Unit Owner, his family, tenents and assigns.

Section 2.

Maintenance and Repair.

(a) Every Owner must perform promptly all maintennence and repair work within his own Unit excluding, however, the Common Elements, which if omitted would affact the Common Elements and/or any other Unit, and shall be expreasly responsible for the damages and liabilities that his failure to do so may engender. Every Unit Owner shall be responsible for maintaining the interior temperature of his Unit sufficiently high such that water pipes located within such Unit shall not be in danger of freesing.
(b) Every Owner shall be responsible for the repairs of internal installations of the Unit which serve only such Unit, such as water, light, power, sewerage, telephone, snnitary installations, doors.

. • • **F**

to the Unit.

(c) An Owner shall relatives the Associacion for any expenditures it incurs in Tepsiring or replacing any common area or facility damaged through the Owner's negligence or failure to promptly perform all maintenance and repair work within his Unit. <u>Use of Units</u>. All Units shall be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the By-Laws,

Declaration, and House Rules.

Section 4.

Section 3.

House Rules. In order to essure the pesceful and orderly enjoyment of the buildings and common elements of the Condominium, the Association may from time to time adopt, modify, and revoke in whole of in part by a vote of the members present in person of represented by proxy whose aggregate interest in the common elements constitute sixty percent (60%), at any meeting duly called for the purpose, such reasonable rules and regulations, to be called House Rules, governing the conduct of persons within the Properties as it may deem necessary. Such House Rules upon adoption, and every smendment, sodification, and revocation thereof, shall be delivered promptly to each Owner and shall be binding upon all members of the Association and occupants of the Properties. Perfection and Foreclosure of Lien. The Association shall perfect its lish sgainst any Unit for which assessments are not paid within minety (90) days from the time such assessments became due in the manner set forth in Section 55-79.84 of the Code of Virginie as amended. This requirement can be vaived only by specific action of the Board of Directore prior to the expiration of such time.

Section 5.

, **3**, ,

The velving of the perfection of such lien shall not valve the right of the Association to maintain an action at law to recover a money judgement for unpaid assessments. Any Owner who is delinquent in the payment of his assessments shall be responsible for the costs and ressonable attorney's fees incurred by the Association in the collection of suth assessments. In any suit to foreclose the lien for essessments, the Association shell follow the requirements of Section 55-79.84 of the Code of Virginia as amended. The Board of Directors, or its agent, shall have the power, but not the obligation, to acquire such Unit on behalf of the Association st s forsclosure sale provided that such action shall have been previously authorized at a regularly held meeting of the Board of Directore. No Unit shall have any votes in the Association when it is owned by the Association.

Section 6.

<u>Right of Entry</u>. The President or any person authorized by the Board of Directors shall have the tight to enter such Unit in case of any emergency originating in or threatening such Unit whether or not the Owner or occupant is present at the time. Every Owner and occupant, when so required, shall permit Board members or their representatives, employees or contractors to enter his Unit at reasonable times for the purpose of performing suthorized installations, alterations, or repairs to the common elements therein for central services, provided that requests for entry are made in advance, except when such request is not practicable due to an emergency situation.

Section 7.

<u>Title</u>. Every Unit Owner shall promptly cause to be duly recorded in the Clork's Office of the Circuit Court of Nelson County, Virginia, the deed or other conveyance to him of his Unit and file a copy thereof or other evidence of his title with the Board of

Ditactors through the Secretary, and the Secretary shall maintain such information in the record of overship of the Association.

Section 8.

Mortgages. Any institutional first lian mortgages, (the Mortgages), of a Unit may file a copy of its mottgage or deed of trust with the Bostd of Directors through the Secretary, and the Secretary shall maintain such information in the record of ownership of the Association. After the filing of the mortgage or deed of trust, the Bostd of Directors (through its manager if one exists), shall notify the Mortgages of any Unit Owner who is in default in the expenses for the edministration of the Association and the Mortgages at its option may pay the delinquent expenses. -

ARTICLE V

Meeting of Members

Section 1.

<u>Annual Heetings</u>. The first annual meeting of the members shall be held within one year from the date of Tacordation of the Declaration of Condominium registered with the Virginia Real Estate Commission pursuant to Section 55-79.92 of the Virginia Code. Each subsequent regular annual meeting of the members shall be held on the Sunday following the second Saturday in each November of each year thereafter, or at such other date as the Board shall establish.

Special Meetings.Special meetings of the membersmay be called at any time by the President or by theBoard of Directors, or upon written request of themembers whe are entitled to vote one-foutth (1/4th)of all of the votes of the membership.Section 3.Natice of Meetings.Written notice of each meeting

7

of the members shall be given by, or at the

direction of, the Sectetary or person authorized to call the meeting, by mailing a copy of such notice. United States Mail, at least twenty-one (21) days before the annual and regular meetings and seven (7) days before a special meeting, to each member of racord entitled to vote thereat, addressed to the membet's Unit address, or such other address supplied by such member to the Association for the purpose of notice. Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour and purposes of the meeting. In lieu of delivering notice as above, the notice may be hand delivered by such officer, provided he obtains a receipt of scorptance of such notice from the Unit Owner.

Quorum. The presence at the beginning of meetings of members entitled to cast, or of written proxies entitled to cast, one-querter (1/4) of the votes of all the membership, shall constitute a quorum for any action estept as otherwise provided in the Declaration or these By-Laws. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting, the members entitled to vote thereet shall have power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum as aforessid shall be present or be Tepresented.

Section 5.

Section 4.

The votes appertaining to any Unit may be cast pursuant to a proxy or proxies duly executed by or on behalf of the Unit Owner, or, in cases where the Unit Owner is more than one person, by or on behalf of all such persons. We such proxy shall be revocable except by actual notice to the person presiding over the meeting, by the Unit Owner or by any such persons, that it be revoked. Any proxy shall be void if it is not dated, if it purports to

- 8

he revocable without notice as eforessid, or if the signatures of any of those executing the same has not been duly witnessed by a person who has signed his full name and address. The proxy of any person shell be void if not signed by a person having authority, at the time of the execution, thereof, to execute deeds we bubilf of that person. Any proxy shall terminate setumatically upon the adjournment of the first meeting held on or efter the date of that proxy.

ARTICLE WI

Voting Rights

Section 1.

The Association shall have one tlass of voting membership: Every Residential Unit Owner, whether one or more, shall have one vote for seth Unit owned. If more than one person owns a Unit, the vote for such Unit shall be test according to Section 35-79.77 (c) of the Code of Vitginia as emended.

ARTICLE VII

Property Rights

Section 1.

<u>Member's Easements of Enjoymont</u>. Every member shall have a right and easement of enjoyment in and to the Common Elements and such easement shall be appurtement to and shall pass with the title to every assessed Unit, subject to the following provisions:

(a) the suspension of membership rights under the provisions of Artitle III, Section 2. hereof,
(b) the right of the Association to limit the number of guescs of members; and

(c) the right of the Asmotiation, in accordance with its By-Laws, to borrow money for the purpose of improving the Gommon Elements.

. 9

Section 1. Delegations of Use. Any member may delegare, in accordance with the By-Laws. his tight of enjoyment to the Common Elements to the members of his family, his guest, his tenents, of contract purchasers who reside on the property.

Section 1.

Utility Essements. The Association by normal Board action may convey and grant any utility essemant.

ARTICLE VIII

Board of Ditectors

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 1.

The management of the affeirs, property and business of the Association shall be vested in a Board of Directors consisting of not less than three or more than seven persons, who shall be elected at the annual meeting of the members for sterm of one year, and shell hold office until their successors are elected and qualify. In addition to the powers expressly conferred by these By-Laws and the Declaration. the Board of Directors may exercise all such powers of the Association and do all such levful acts and things as are not by statute, or by the Declaration or by these By-Laws directed or required to be exercised or done by the members. The Board of Directors shall have the right to delegate to a Managing Agent all of its powers relating to the maintenance of the Common Elements and to the collection of all assessments for the Association. -Such Managing Agent shell have no power to establish rulas and regulations for the Association.

The Board of Directors shall administer the By-Laws and the House Rules as they relate to the use of the Common Elements. The Board of Directors shall have the right to delegate the approval of any changes in the exterior of the Building to an Architectural Review Board. Such Architectural Review Board shall

្រុះស្រុ

be appointed by the Board of Directors to a term not to exceed the term of one year.

Section 4.

Section 5.

6.50

Saction 6.

Directors may not receive any compensation other than raimburaement of expenses made on behalf of the Association.

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors without notice other than these By-Laws, shall be held immediately after the adjournment of each annual meeting of the Association and at the same place. Special meetings of the Board of Directors, to be held at a place to be dasignated by the President or Vice-President, may be called by the President, or in his absence, by the Vice-President, or by any two members of the Board of Directors.

Notice of the time and place of all special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be mailed to each Director by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary at least ten (10) days before the time fixed for the meeting, unless the fixing of such notice is waived by prior resolution of the Bosrd of Directors or pursuant to Section 11, of this Article. All notices of special meetings shall state the purposes thereof, except as this requirement may be vaived as hereinafter provided. A duorum for the transaction of business at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors shall consist of a majority of the members of said Board, but the Directors present at any Directors' meeting, though less than a quorum, may adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notics other than at the sime of adjournment, until the requisite quorum shall be present.

Any vacancy on the Board of Directors, except where caused by removal of a Director, may be filled by vote of the remnining Directors at any regular or

<u>Section 7</u>.

Section 8.

 $g \ge 1$

Section 9.

special meeting of the Board of Directors. A Director elected to fill a vacancy shell serve for the expired portion of the term of the Director whose place he filled and until his successor shall be duly elected and qualify, unless sooner displaced.

Section 10.

At each annual members' meeting, the Board of Directors shell submit a statement of the business done during the preceding year, together with a report on the general financial condition of the Association and on the condition of its tangible property.

Section 11.

Any or all of the requirements of this Article of By-Laws as to time, place, or notice of any meeting of the Board of Directors may be vaived by the Directors, if each member of said Board shall agree in writing to such waiver.

Section 12.

In any case where the Association enters into any contract, transacts any business with any Director or Directors. or with any corporation of association of which one or more of its Directors is a stockholder, director, officer, trustee or pertner, such contract of transaction shall not be invelideted of in any wise affected by the fact ther such Director or Directors have or may have any interact, if disclosure is made to the Board of Directors by the Directors having such interest, and if the Board of Directors by majority vote of the disinterested Directors authorizes, affirms, fatifies, of approves such contract or transaction; such Director may not vote on any such action in which he has said interest as stated above.

ARTICLE IX

Nomination and Election of Directors

Section 1.

Momination. Nomination for election of the Board of Ditectors shall be made by a Nominating Committee. Nominations may elso be made from the floor at the annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall consist of a Chairman who shall be a member of the Board of Directors, and two or more members of the Association. The Nominsting Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors prior to each annual meeting of the members, to serve from the close of such annual meating until the close of the next annual waeting and such appointment shall be announced at each annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board of Directors as it shall in its discretion determine, but not less than the number of vacancies that are to be filled. Such nominations may be made from among members or nonnembere.

Section 2.

<u>Flaction</u>. At the election of the Board of Directors, the members of their provise may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected. Cumulative voting is not permitted.

ARTICLE X

Officare

Section 1.

 $\langle 2 \rangle_{12}$

4.00

The Board of Directors shall elect the officers of the Association, such election to be held at the annual meeting of the Board of Directors following each annual mombar's meeting. As officer may be removed at any time by a majority vote of the full Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting.

of the Directors, but any officer whose removal is contemplated shell be grented a reasonable time in which to answer, at a heating before the full Board of Directors, such charges as may be brought sgained him.

: 2

The officers of the Association shell be a Presi-Section 2. dent, e Vice-President, e Secretery, an Assistant Secretary, if elected, and a Tressurer, but any two officers except that of President and Secretary may be held by the same individuel. The officers shall be elected for a term of one year and shell hold office until their successors are duly elected and quelified. Officers elected to fill vecancies for the unexpired portion of the terms of their predecessors and hold office until their successors are duly elected and qualify. No one shall be aligible for the office of Presidenc who is not a Director of the Association, and any President who causes to be a Director shall cease to hold the office of Presidenc.

Saction 3. The Presidenc shall be the chief executive of the Association; he shall precide at all Directors' and members' meetings; shell have general supervision over the affairs of the Associacian, shall eign all membership carcificaces; and shell perform all such ducime as are incidenc to his office or as che Board of Directors may prescribe.

> In the case of the obsence or disability of the President, his duties shall be performed by the Vice-President, or by such other officer as the Bostd of Directors may designate. The other ducies of the Vice-President shall be such as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe. The Secretary shall issue the matices of meetings of the members and of the Board of Directors, and

Section 4.

Section 5.

shall attend and keep the minutes of the same; he shall be in tharge of all Association records except those to be kept by the Treasurer; attest with his signature all membership certificates and all written contracts of the Association as to which attestation is necessary, and shall perform all such other duties as are incident to his office, or as the Board of Directors may prescribe.

The Treasurer shall have the custody of all monies and securities of the Association and shall keep regular books of account. He shall disburse the funds of the Association in payment of the just demands egainst the Association or as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements, and shall render to the Board of Directors from time to time as may be required of bim, an account of all bis transactions es Treasurer and of the financial conditions of the Association. He thall perform all duties incident to his office or which are properly required of him by the Board of Directors.

In the case of the absence or inability to act of any officer of the Association, the Board of Directors say, from time to time, delegate the powers or duties of such officer to any other officer, or any Director or other person whom it may select.

Any vecancy in any office erising from any cause may be filled by the Directors at any regular or special meeting.

The Boerd of Directors may appoint such other officer or officers as it shell doom necessary or expedient, who shall hold his or their office for such terms, and who shall exercise such powers and perform such duties as shall be determined from time

Section 7.

Section 9.

Section 8.

Section 6.

ARTICLE XI

Meetings

Section 1,

The order of business at all regular meetings of the Board of Directnes and of members shall follow as mearly as practiculing the following outline: (a) Calling meeting to order and determination of a

quorus,

(b) Reading and adoption of the minutes of the previous meeting(s),

(c) Reports of officers.

(d) Reports of special committees.

(e) Election of Directors (or officers).

(f) Unfinished business.

(g) New business; and

(h) Adjournment.

ARTICLE XII

Finances

Section 1.

<u>Fiscel Tear</u>. The fiscal year of the Condominium shall consist of the twelve (12) month petiod commencing on January 1 of each year and terminating on December 31 of the same year.

Section 2,

<u>Preparation and Approval of Budget</u>. Each year on or before December 1, the Board of Directors shall adopt a budget for the Condominium containing an estimate of the total amount which it considers necessary to pay the cost of utility services. maintenance, management, operation, repair and replacement of the Common Elements and those parts of the Units as to which it is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to maintain, repair, replace, and the cost of wages, fees, materials, insurance premiums, services, supplies, reserves and other

expenses that constitute Common Expenses under the Condominium Act, these By-Laws or a Resolution of the Board of Directors or the Unit Owner's Association, and which will be required duting the ensuing fiscal year of the administration, operation, maintenance and repair of the Condominium and the rendering to the Unit Owners of all related services. The Budget may also include: (a) The cost of the maintenance or repair of any condominium unit in the event such maintenance or repair is reasonably necessary in the discretion of the Board of Directors to protect the Common Elements of to preserve the appearance or value of the condominium project or is otherwise in the interest of the general welfare of all owners of the condominium units; provided, however, that no such maintenance or repair shall be undertaken without a resolution by the Board of Directors and not without ressonable written notice to the owner of the condominium Unit on which such maintenance or repair is performed and when so sessessed, a statement for the amount thereof shell be rendered promotly to the then owner of seld condominium Unit at which time the assessment shall become due and payable and a continuing lies and obligation of said owner in all respects as provided in Articla IV of these By-Laws.

(b) Any amount netensary to discharge any lism or encumbrance lavied sgainer the condominium, or any portion thereof, which may, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, constitute a lien against the Common Elements rather than the interest therein of the owner of any individual condominium unic. (c) Such budget may also include such reasonable amounts as the Board of Directors considers

:17

necessary to provide working funds for the Condominium, a general operating reserve, or reserves for contingencies and replacements. The Board of Directors shall send to each Unit Owner a a copy of the Budget, in a reasonably itomized form which sets forth the amount of the Common Expenses payable by each Unit Owner, at least ten (10) days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year to which the Budget applies. The said Budget shall constitute the basis for determining each Unit Owner's contribution for the Common Expenses of the Condominum.

Reserves. The Board of Directors may build up and maintsin reasonable reserves for working capital, operations, contingencies and replacements. Extraordinary expanditures not originally included in the Budget which may become necessary during the year shall be charged first egainst reserves. If the reserves are inadequate for any reason, including nonpayment of any Unit Owner's escessment, the Board of Directore may at any time lavy a further assessment which shall be assessed against the Unit Owner's according to their respective Undivided Interescs in the Common Elements, and which may be payable in a lump sum or in installments as the Board of Directore may datermins. The Board of Directors shall sarve notice of any such further assessment on all Unit Owners by a statement in writing giving the amount and reason therefor and such further assessment shall, unless otherwise specified in the notice, become effective with the next wonthly payment which is due aftor the delivery or mailing of such notice of further assessment. All Unit Owners shall be obligated to pay the adjustod monthly amount or, if the additional assessment is

Section 3.

not payable in installments, the amount of such assessment.

Section 4,

Effect of Failure to Prepare or Adopt Budget. The failure or delay of the Board of Direttors to prepare or adopt the annual budget for any fiscal year shall not constitute a waiver or release in any manner of a Unit Owner's obligation to pay his allocable share of the Common Expenses as herein provided, whenever the same shell be determined, and in the absence of any annual budget or adjusted budget, each Unit Owner shall continue to pay the monthly charge at the them existing monthly rate established for the previous fiscal period until the new annual or adjusted budget shall have been mailed or delivered.

Section 5.

Deposit of Funds. The funds of the Association shall be deposited in such banks, trust companies, of other depositories as the Board of Directors may designate. Checks drawn to pay indebtedness of the Association may be signed by such person of persons as the Board of Directors may choose by resolution.

Section 6.

<u>Authorized Signaturs</u>. The Fresident or the Secretary ste bereby suthorized to make and issue notes, bonds, debentures, obligations, and evidences of indebtedness of all kinds only pursuant to resolutions duly adopted by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE XILL

Books and Records

Section 1.

< 0 -

The books, records and papers of the Association. shall at all times, during reasonable business hours, be subject to inspection by any member. The Declaration and these By-Laws shall be available for inspection by any member at the principal office teasonable cost.

ARTICLE XIV

Insurance

Section 1.

£7.

The Unit Owner's Association shall obtain and maintain at all times insutance, as set forth herein, including insurance against fire, with endotsement for extended covatage for the full insurable replacement value, of Overlook Condominium as authotized by Section 55-79.81 of the Code of Vitginia as amasded. Such insurance shall run to the benefit of the Unit Owner's Association, the respective Unit Owners and their respective mottgagees, as their interests may appear, which insutance shall be governed by the following provisione:

(a) The Board of Directors shall be requited to obtain a single master policy covering physical damage for the entite Property under which the insufance company will issue to each Unit Owner a cestificate or sub-policy. The master policy shall also provide:

(1) That each Unit Owner shall have the right to request an intreasm in the coverage allocated to his Unit by reason of improvemente made solely to his Unit, but any additional coverage shall be billed by the insurance company directly to, and shall be paid by, such Unit Owner; and

(b) In addition, the Board of Directors shall be _ required to secure a mater policy covering physical damage that will provide the following:

(1) That the insurer waives its rights of subregation to any claims against the Declarant,

Board of Directors, the Managing Agent, the Unit Owners and their respective sgents, employees, and in the case of Unit Owners, the members of their households;

(2) That the master policy on the Property cannot be cancelled, invelidated, or suspended on account of the tonduct of any member of the Board, officer or employee of the Board of Directors or the Managing Agent, without a prior demand in writing that the Board of Directors or the Managing Agent cure the defact;

(3) That any "no other insurance" clause contained in the master policy shall expressly exclude individual Unit Owner's policies from its operation;

(4) That until the expiration of thirty (30) days after the insurer gives notice in writing to the mortgages of any Unit. the mortgages's insurance coverage will not be affected or jeopardised by any act or conduct of the Unit Owner of such Unit, the other Unit Owners, the Board of Directors, or any of their agents. employees or household members, nor cancelled for monpayment of premiums.

(5) That the master policy may not be cancelled or substantially modified without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Board of Directors and all mortgagess of Units;

(6) That the net proceeds of such policies, if less than twonty-five thousand dollors. (\$25,000) shall be payable to the Board of Directors, and if more than twenty-five thousand dollars, (\$25,000), shall be payable

to the Insurance frustee,

195

(7) That the master policy shall contain a standard mortgages clause in favor of each mortgages of a Unit to the extent of the portion of the coverage of the master policy allocated to such Unit, which shall provide that the losa, if any, thereunder shall be payable to such mortgages and the Unit Owner as their interests may appear subject; however, to the loss payment and adjustment provisions in favor of the Board of Directors and the Insurance Trustee contained in Sections 4. and 5. of this Article.

(c) All policies of insurance shall be written with a company liconsed to do business in the State of Virginia and holding a rating of "AAA" or batter by Beat's Insurance Reports. (d) In no event shall the insurance coverage obtained and maintained by the Board of Directors hereunder he brought into contribution with insurance purchased by individual Unit Owners or their mortgagees. (a) Each Unit Owner shall be required to notify the Board of Directors of all improvements made by the Unit Owners to his Unit, the value of which is in excess of one thousand dollars, (\$1,000). (f) Any Unit Owner who obtains individual insurance policies covering any portion of the properties, shall be required to file a copy of such individual policy or policics with the Board of Directors within thirty (30) days after the purchase of such insurance. Such Unit Owner shall also promptly notify, in writing, the Board of Directors in the event such policy is enneelled.

والمتعادين والمتعادين

é. e

1.19 -1

 $\mathcal{O}_{1,2}$

Insurance Cover me.

(a) The Board of Directors shall be required to the extent available to obtain and maintain the following insurance:

(1) Fire insurance with extended coverage vandalism, malicious mischief and windstorm endotsements, insuring the entire Properties (including all of the Units and bathroom and kitchen fintures initiality installed therein by the Declarant, but not including furniture, furnishings, or other personal property supplied of installed by Unit Owners), together with boilet and machinery insurance contained therein and covering the interests of the Association and all Unit Owners and their motigagees as their interests may appear in the amount equal to at least 100% of replacement value of the Properties.

(2) Workren's compensation insurance, if and to the extent necessary to meet the requirements of law.

(3) Such other insurance as the Board of Directory way determine.

(b) The Boath of Directors shall also be required to obtain and maintain to the extent obtainable, public liability and property damage insutance in such limits a the Board of Directors may from time to time determine insuring the Declarant, each member of the Board of Directors, the Madaging Agent, and each Unit Owner against any liability to the public of to the Unit Owners (and their invitees, agents and employees arising out of, or incident to, the everthip and or use of the Common Elements). Said Insurance shall be Insued on a comprimentive lightity basis and shall contain a

cross lisbility endotsement under which the rights of named insured under the policy shall not be prejudiced with respect to his action against anothet named insured. The Boatd of Directors shall review such limits once a year, but in no event shall such insurance be less than one million dollars, (\$1,000,000) with respect to any one eccident of occurrence and fifty thousand dollars, (\$50,000) with respect to any claim for property damage. It shall be the responsibility of each Unit Owner to obtain, at his own expense, liability insurence with respect to his ownership and or use of his Unit, and the Board of Directors shall not be responsible for obtaining such insurance.

(c) A duplicate original of the makter policy of physical damage insurance, all renewals thereof, and all sub-policies or certificates issued thereunder, regether with proof of payment of premiums, shall be delivered to all mortgegees of Units at least thirty (30) days prior to expiration of the then current policies, Frior to obtaining any policy of fire insurance or any renewal thereof, the Board of Directots shall obtain an appraisal from an insurance company, or such other source as the Board of Directots may determine, of the full replacement value of the propetty, without deduction for depreciation for the purpose of determining the amount of physical damage insurance to be effected pursuant to this Section.

ļ

ų,

Section 3.

Separare Insurance. Each Unit Owner shell have the right, at his own expense, to obtain additional insurance for his own Unit and for his own benefit and to obtain insurance covatage upon his personal property for his personal liability, provided that no Unit Owner shall be entitled to exercise his

-24

right to acquire or maintain such additional insurance coverage so as to decrease the amount which the Board of Directors. on behalf of all Unit Owners, may realize under any insurance policy which it may have in force on the Properties at any particular time or to cause any insurance coverage maintained by the Board of Directors to be brought into contribution with such additional insurance coverage obtained by the Unit Owner. All such additional policies shall contain vaivers of subrogation.

Section 4.

 $C \in \mathbb{R}^{n}$

 $\sigma_{i} < \epsilon_{i}$

Insurance Trustee.

(a) The lender that is the holder of more than fifty percent (50%) of the mortgages or deede of truet encumbering Units shall be designated as the Insurance Trustee. If for any resson such lender shall fail, refuse or shall cease to acc as such, or at such time as it shall no longer hold such wortgages, the Board of Directors shall have the right to designate any bank, trust company, savings and loss association, building loss association, insurance company, or any institutional lander as the Insurance Trustee, and all perties baneficially interested in such insurance coverege shall be bound thereby; provided, however, that prior to such designation of a new Insurance Trustee, the Board of Directors shall obtain the consent to such new Insurance Trustee of the mortgages or mortgagess holding postgages constituting first liens on more than fifty percent (50%) of the number of Units in the Condominium encumbered by mortgages. The Insurance Trustee at the time of the deposit of such policies and endorsements shall acknowledge that the policies and sny proceeds thereof will be held in accordance with the terms of these By-Laws.

(b) The Insurance Trustee shall not be liable for payment of premiums, the renewal of the policies, the sufficiency of coverage, the form or content of the policies, the correctness of any amounts recaived by it on account of the proceeds of any insurance policies, nor for the failute to collect any insurance proceeds. The sole duty of the Insurance Trustee shall be to receive such proceeds es are paid to it and to hold the same in trust for the purposes elsewhere stared in these By-Laws, for the benefit of the Unit Owners and their respective motrgagees.

Section 5.

Board of Directors as Agent. The Board of Directors is hereby irrevocably appointed the agent for each Unit Owner of a Unit and for each mortgages of a Unit and for each Owner of any other interest in the Froperty to sdjust all claims arising under insurance policies purchased by the Board of Directors and to execute and deliver releases upon the payment of claims.

Section 6.

<u>Premiums</u>. Premiums upon all insurance policies putchased by the Board of Directors shall be deemed to be a Common Expense.

ARTICLE XV

Indemnification

Section 1. The Association shall have the power to indemnify any officer, director, employee or sgent of the Association who was or is threatened, made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigntive, (other than an action by the Association), by reason that he is or was en officer, director, employee or agent of the Association against expenses, (including attorney's

fees), judgements, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with such action, suit or proceeding provided:

 (a) such officet, director, employee or agent acted in good faith and in the manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interest of the Association; and

(b) such officer, director, employee or agenc shall not have been guilty of gross negligence or misconduct in his position directly relating to the claim set forth in such action, suit or proceeding.

ARTICLE IVI

Asendments

Section 1.

These By-Laws may be amanded by recordation of an instrument executed by the Unit Owners to which twothirds, (2/3rds) of the votes in the Association ate allocated in the Clerk's Office of the Circuit Court of Melson County, Virginia.

Section 2.

In the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these By-Laws, the Declaration shall control.

ARTICLE XVII

Declarant Control

Section 1.

The Declarant shall control the Association until the first annual or spacial meeting of the Association as described in Article V hereof provided; however, in no event shall Declarant's control of the Association exceed the period of time set forth in Sattion 55-79.74 of the Code of Visginis, as amended.

SEE PLAT PLAY CARINER 1 SUDE 177-183

VIRGINIA: In the Clark's Diffeo of the Clark's Court of Netson County <u>Local</u> <u>at</u> 19 <u>V</u>(c. This writing was publicle to record at <u>VIES</u>, cluck <u>C. M. and the law imposed</u> by Sec. 50.3.403 of the Code in the amount of <u>8.7 Victor</u> has been paid. TESTE: <u>POSEMARY F. DAVIS</u> <u>Clark</u>

BY C A. HI. BURNE 17 Deputy Clerk

The hangeing consisting of 22 Down (1) is a train case of Alast 11 and 12 and 1

